

Employer Online User guide

Australian Retirement Trust Pty Ltd ABN 88 010 720 840 AFSL 228975 Australian Retirement Trust ABN 60 905 115 063.

Contents

Ø	Introduction	3
	The benefits of Australian Retirement Trust Employer Online	3
	How to access Australian Retirement Trust Employer Online	3
D	Security	3
	Privacy	3
	Logging on	4
	Menu options	4
	Dashboard	5
	Take advantage of tool tips functionality	5
	Web upload	6
	How to upgrade and register to use the Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House	6
	Messages	8
*	Wizard	10
	Contributions Wizard, Steps 1-4	10
	Entering or editing contributions	12
	Customising your contribution grid	12
	Adding a new employee	14
	Editing an employee's details	16
	Removing employees	17
	Errors and warnings	17
	Saving your contribution grid	18
	Printing your contribution grid	18
	Settings	23
	My Funds (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)	28
	How to link a new fund	28
	Legends definition	29
	How to link a Self-Managed Super Fund (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)	29
	How to edit a Fund (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)	30
L	Reports (Participating and Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House registered employers only)	30
	How to generate a Member Superanuation Report	30
	How to generate the Submitted Contribution Grid Report	31
X	Super Fund Onboarding (SFO)	32
	How to use SFO	32
-	Logging off	32
5	Support	32

Introduction

Employer Online is a quick, easy and secure way to make contributions for Australian Retirement Trust members. This guide will explain how to register as a Australian Retirement Trust employer, obtain an employer number and make an online payment.

The benefits of Australian Retirement Trust Employer Online

Employer Online allows you to:

- > enter and pay contributions by direct debit or BPAY[®],
- > quickly add new and update existing employee records,
- > run and print reports, and
- > check your online transaction history.
- Gain free access to our Clearing House service (if you choose Australian Retirement Trust as your default fund).

How to access Australian Retirement Trust Employer Online

- > To access Employer Online, you will need to register to obtain an employer number.
- Once you've registered, you'll get instructions on how to make secure payments to your employees' super.

Security

Employer Online relies on Secure Socket Layer (SSL) encryption technology. This means that there is a secure connection between your web browser and web server(s). Any data that is sent via this method is encrypted to ensure added security.

When you log in to Employer Online you are in a "secure session". You know you are in a secure session if the URL address begins with https://

Important information:

Any records of your company's bank account details in the Australian Retirement Trust system are kept secure in accordance with the Pay super online **Terms and Conditions**.

Privacy

i

Australian Retirement Trust respects the privacy of the information you provide to us. We have a formal Privacy Policy that sets out how we do this. You can find a copy of our **Privacy Policy** on our pubic website or on the login page of Employer Online.

Logging on

To log in to Employer Online, simply follow the steps below:

- 1. Go to art.com.au
- 2. Click Log In, select Employer Log In.
- 3. Enter your six-digit username (this is your employer number) followed by your password.¹
- 4. Click Log in.²
- 5. Confirming your identity confirm where the verification code should be sent by providing either a pre-registered email address or mobile number and click Send.
- 6. The verification code should be received within 1 5 minutes, enter your verification code and click Verify to enter Employer Online.

Multi-factor authentication
Multi-factor authentication adds an extra layer of security when you log into your Employer Online account.
When you log into Employer Online you'll need to:
 Enter your username and password as usual. Then, a verification code will be sent to your email or mobile.
Verify your email or mobile
We recommend you verify your email and mobile so you can receive a verification code when logging into Employer Online. While verifying your mobile is optional, providing it gives you another method to receive a verification code when logging into Employer Online.
Your privacy
Rest assured your email and mobile that we'll use for multi-factor authentication will not be used for marketing purposes. For more on how we protect and use your personal information read our Privacy Policy.
Reminder message
Once you've verified either your email or mobile this annoying alert message will disappear.
Verify your email or mobile Snooze for five days



Important information:

¹If there are additional users on your employer account, these users enter their Username as your *employer number_username* (e.g. 666666_username). If you are logging on as the main user, simply enter your Australian Retirement Trust employer number.

²If logging in for the first time, you will be prompted to change your password and set up a security question.

While Employer Online can be accessed using different web browsers, using Google Chrome can provide the best user experience. For more information, please **contact us**.

🖽 Menu options

Once you have logged in, you will be directed to the Dashboard. The menu items are located on the left side of the page. These are:

- > Dashboard
- > Wizard

i

- > Settings
- > My Funds (Note: This will appear for Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House registered employers only)
- Reports (Note: This will appear for Participating & Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House registered employers only)

Dashboard

The dashboard allows you to quickly access various tools of Employer Online. Some of these include:

- > start a new contribution,
- > resume a saved contribution,
- > delete a contribution which has not yet been submitted,
- > register for Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House,
- view any previously submitted contributions in the **Completed** section you can also view the contribution receipt which includes payment instructions, and
- > view messages such as new Australian Retirement Trust member registrations.

Take advantage of tool tips functionality

Tool tips is a tour that takes you through Employer Online and gives you a brief explanation of the features. You can turn this functionality off at any time however once you have viewed all the tool tips, they won't display again.

Austr Retire Trust	alian ement			Nut
Dashboard	Welcome to Employer Onl	ine		
Wizard	Great news! You're eligible to upg	rade to Australian Retirement Tru	ist clearing house.	Upgrade
Settings Reports	Lodge employee super contributions via the options below. Contributions New	Completed		
	To start a new contribution, simply select the "Start	Period Amount Date submitted	CH Status	View
	new" button below.			

An example of a tool tip in Employer Online.

Web upload

If you wish to make contributions using Web Upload, you will need to follow these steps:

- 1. Read our **File Specifiations for Web Upload** document detailing the requirements and format of a file to be uploaded.
- 2. Send a sample file to **clearinghouse@art.com.au** so we can configure your account and test your external fund data. If you are unable to provide sample data in your file via email, please upload it through our secure **Contact Us** page on our website.

Upgrade to Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House

Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House is a service available to registered Australian Retirement Trust employers. It allows employers to pay multiple super funds for different employees quickly and efficiently via Employer Online. It's available to employers (at no additional cost) who:

- > are enrolled for Employer Online, and
- > have selected Australian Retirement Trust as their default superannuation fund.

For more information on how our Clearing House could benefit your business, read the **Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House Product Disclosure Statement**.

How to upgrade and register to use the Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House

- 1. Make sure you have registered as an employer.
- 2. Complete the Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House enrolment online via Employer Online. Once you have clicked on the **Upgrade** button you will be taken to the **Settings** tab of Employer Online.
- 3. Choose how you would like to pay your employer contributions:

Option 1:

I would like to make one payment to Australian Retirement Trust and Australian Retirement Trust will distribute all payments on my behalf.

Option 2:

I want Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House to distribute my data to each superannuation fund and I want to make payments to each fund myself.

- 4. Select your payment method Direct Debit, BPAY® or EFT.
 - a) If Direct Debit is selected, make sure bank information details are provided BSB, Account Number and Account Name.
 - b) If BPAY or EFT is selected please provide bank account details to be used in the event a refund is required.

Note: For the above payment method preferences, these are only available if Option 1 from step 3 is selected.

- 5. Make sure all mandatory fields are completed.
- 6. The **Save** button will become enabled once you have completed the form and confirmed that you have read and accepted the terms and conditions of Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House service and the Direct Debit Service Agreement for direct debit users.
- 7. After clicking Save, you will receive a confirmation message advising that you have been successful and the **My Funds** tab will become available.

Austr Retire	alian
• Trust	and a second
Dashboard	Settings Adjust your account settings via the options below.
24	Change password Change security question Contact Payment Users
Wizard	How would you like to manage your super contributions? How to use our Clearing House service
Settings	I only want to pay Australian Retirement Trust I want to pay multiple funds, using Australian Retirement Trust clearing house.
County of	How would you like to pay your employer contributions?
	I would like to make one payment to Australian Retirement Trust clearing house to distribute all navments on my hehalf
Reports	I want Australian Retirement Trust clearing house to distribute my data to each superannuation fund and I want to make payments to each fund myself.
	Payment Details
	Payment Method *
	BPAY B
	O Direct Debit O EFT PAY savings, debit, or transaction account. More into: www.opay.com.au
	By choosing BRAY® to complete an online contribution, you are required to submit payment via your own financial institution on the same day as submitting your contribution, using the BPAY details supplied in Employer Online. Your contribution obligation has not been met until this payment has been received by the superannuation fund(s).
	If you are not currently using BPAY in your business, please check with your financial institution to see if this facility is available.
	SSB*
	Account Number *
	Account Name *
	I have read and agree to use Australian Retirement Trust clearing house as described in the Australian Retirement Trust clearing house Product Disclosure Statement. I have brought to the attention of any employee(s) for which personal information will be disclosed in order to facilitate their contributions to their fund, the Privacy Statement provided within Precision Administration Services Privacy Policy. I understand that Australian Retirement Trust clearing house is only available to employers who have selected Australian Retirement Trust as a default fund, and I confirm that I have nominated Australian Retirement Trust as a default fund for my employees.

An example of the form you'll see when you upgrade to Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House or elect to change your payment option.

Important information:

i

- If you select option 2, Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House will receive and distribute your data only. We'll provide you with each fund's payment details, so you can directly pay each fund and still meet SuperStream standards.
- > You will need to ensure you choose your preferred payment method:

If paying via Direct Debit, enter the BSB, Account Number, and Account Name you would like your Australian Retirement Trust and external contributions to be debited from. These details will also be used in the event a refund is required. If BPAY or EFT is selected you will need to provide bank account details to be used in the event a refund is required.

Note: If the Your payment details section doesn't appear, please select the payment method of Direct Debit and reselect BPAY[®] or EFT. Once completed, the payment details section should appear to enter the refund bank details.

- Check the box to confirm that you have read and accepted the terms and conditions of our Clearing House.
- > If Australian Retirement Trust does not already have your ABN or email address on file, you will be required to provide it during the application process. If your business does not have an ABN, please contact us on **13 11 84** so we can assist further.
- For more details on using the Clearing House service, you can refer to the 'How to use our Clearing House' factsheet.

Messages

The next time you log into Employer Online, you may see that a message has been sent to you for a grid you have previously submitted.

New messages will appear under the **Completed** section on your **Dashboard**, next to the contribution grid to which they relate. You can view the message by either clicking on the envelope or **Grid**. Some messages you may receive include, but are not limited to the following circumstances:

- > notification that a member number has been allocated for a new employee,
- > no payment has been received for a submitted contribution,
- > non-Australian Retirement Trust fund responses, such as returned payment advices, and
- > an underpayment for a contribution has occurred.

Once you have viewed a message, the icon on the dashboard will change to an open envelope.

Please note: new messages may be sent through for a submitted contribution, even after you have viewed a previous message for that grid. In this case the icon will appear as an unread message to indicate a new message is available to be viewed.

• Irust								
A	Welcome to Employer Only	ine						
Dashboard	1							
11	Great news! You're eligible to upg	rade to Austr	alian Reti	rement Tru	st clearing h	ouse.	Upgrade	
Wizard	More info							
1								
Settings								
	Lodge employee super contributions via the options below.							
	Contributions							
Reports	Contributions							
Reports	Contributions New	Complete	ed					
Reports	Contributions New To start a new contribution, simply select the "Start new" button below.	Complete	eđ Amount	Date submitted	CH Status		View	
Reports	Contributions New To start a new contribution, simply select the "Start new" button below. Your contribution will be automatically saved. In progress contributions can be resumed at any time	Complete Period April 2022	ed Amount \$1,075.00	Date submitted 01/02/2022	CH Status		View Grid Receipt	
Reports	Contributions New To start a new contribution, simply select the "Start new" button below. Your contribution will be automatically saved in progress contributions can be resumed at any time.	Complete Period April 2022 March 2022	ed Amount \$1,075.00 \$750.00	Date submitted 01/02/2022 01/02/2022	CH Status		View Grid Receipt Grid Receipt	

An example of a read and unread message on the Dashboard.

		Emp	loyer Online											
Austr	alian												Log off Te	nms & Conditions Tool Tips ON
Trust														013 11 84
A	April 20	22												
Dashboard	- quin 2.0	L.L.	(Internet internet)											
22	Down	sload report	Export Messages											
Wizard	Exclude	Alerts	Employer provided member number	ART allocated member number	Sumame	Given names	Date of birth	Payroll ID	Superannuation guarantee	Salary sacrifice	Member voluntary	Other contributions	Total	Ceased employment date
~		0		903161676	TEST	TEST	02/02/2001		\$175.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00 ^	\$175.00	
Settings		> Mi	ember registration request wa	successfully processed. I	fember number is 9031	51676.								
-	0	0		903161675	TEST	TEST	03/03/1989		\$150.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00 ^	\$150.00	
Reports		> M	ember registration request wa	successfully processed. I	fember number is 9031	51675.								
	0			903060860	TEST	TEST	01/01/1980		\$500.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00 A	\$500.00	
			903161651	903161651	TEST	TEST	01/01/1990		\$250.00	\$0.00	\$0.00	\$0.00 ^	\$250.00	

An example grid showing message details.



To enter your contributions, click the **Start new** button or click on **Wizard** in the menu on the left.

	Start	2 Data	3 Sum	mary 4	Payment Instruction
Co	ontribution Select a contributio	n period	s below.		
	uarterly	n period from the options had	Now		
Settings	Select>		50W		

An example of the display screen to enter your contributions.

Contributions Wizard, Steps 1-4

Step 1: Start

Select the contribution frequency and period you want to pay for then select how you want to submit your contributions from the following options:

Note: If the period required isn't available, select the contribution frequency 'custom' and enter the start and end date of the period required.

- Enter employees' information manually using this wizard presents you with two options:
 Start with a fresh contribution grid. This will load a grid that contains all active employees attached to your account and allows you to manually enter contributions.
 - **Pre-populate my contribution grid from a previous period.** This will display members and their contributions from a previously submitted contribution grid. You have the option to choose from the last four grids that have been manually entered and submitted^{*}.
- Please note: if you add a new employee and use this function, the new employee from the previous month will be displayed however you will be required to re-enter their contribution amount. Also note that you will only be able to select completed contributions, which means that all data and money has been sent to and received by Australian Retirement Trust. You may need to wait a day after submitting for your contribution to be complete.

> Upload a file with my employees' information. If enabled and logged in under an appropriate user level**, this option allows you to upload a file from your payroll system. Once you have selected your file, it will automatically fill your contribution grid with the data that was contained in your file, including new employees. Depending on your user level* you may still be able to edit employees and amounts once loaded into the grid if needed. For more information on uploading files, please refer to the Web Upload section in this guide.

*You're unable to pre-populate a contribution grid that has been submitted via Web-Upload. **Please refer to the **Users** section for more information on user levels and functions.

Once you've selected the contribution frequency, period and your input method, click on the **Next** button.

1 Start 2 Data 3 Summary 4 Payment Instruction Vicard Wirard • Select a contribution frequency from the options below. • Custom •	 Retin Trus 	rement t				
Astribution period Vizard Setings Setings Period Start Date 01-FEB-2022 Image: Period End Date 14-FEB-2022 How did you want to submit your contribution? Image: Enter employees' information manually using this wizard Upload a file with my employees' information. To enable web upload, please call 13 11 84.	A	1 Start	2 Data	3 Summary	4 Payment Instruction	
I4-FEB-2022 Reports I4-FEB-2022 How did you want to submit your contribution? Image: Enter employees' information manually using this wizard Image: Upload a file with my employees' information. To enable web upload, please call 13 11 84. For instructions on how to get access to upload a payroll file, refer to our file	Wizard ¢ Settings	Custom Period Start Date 01-FEB-2022 Period End Date	v	ιων.		
specifications.	Reports	14-FEB-2022 How did you want to su Enter employees' to Upload a file with the	mit your contribution? nformation manually using thi my employees' information. 70	s wizard o enable web upload, please call	For instructions on how to upload a payroll file, refer specifications.	get access to ×

An example of the display screen when 'Custom' contribution frequency is selected.

Step 2: Data

In the Data tab, you can:

- > enter or edit contributions
- > add a new Australian Retirement Trust member
- > cease an employee
- > save your contribution grid
- > print your contribution grid
- add a new and edit an external member (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House employers only)
- > customise the way your contribution grid looks

Entering or editing contributions

You can enter or edit your employee's contributions by clicking in any of the contribution boxes. Totals will automatically adjust as you make changes.

If you upload a contribution file, the amounts in your file will populate your grid. You can edit the contributions if needed and customise which columns display in your grid. Refer to **Customising your contribution grid** for more information.

Customising your contribution grid

You can customise the view of your contribution grid by clicking on the Column Options button, which allows you to change the display of your columns.

The following columns can be customised:

- > member number
- > payroll ID
- > ceased employment date
- > superannuation guarantee
- salary sacrifice
- > member voluntary
- > employer voluntary
- > employer award
- > other contributions
- > other details

Important information:

- > By default member number, payroll ID, ceased employment date, superannuation guarantee, salary sacrifice and member voluntary columns are visible.
- If you wish to change which columns are displayed, simply check or uncheck the box next to the column(s) you wish to customise, your preferences will be applied once you click on the Save button.
- > Your preference to hide a contribution type column will be applied unless an amount has been entered for one or more employees on the page.

Column Options	
Member details	Contribution types*
Member number	Superannuation guarantee
Payroll ID	Salary sacrifice
Ceased employment date	Member voluntary
	Employer voluntary
	Employer award
	Other contributions
	Other details
* Your preference to hide a contribution entered for one or more employees on the second sec	type column will be applied unless an amount has been the page.
Save Cancel	

An example of the display screen you'll see for all columns that will be visible.

Adding a new employee

You can add a new employee by clicking **Add Employee**. Alternatively, if you upload a contribution file, simply uploading your file with the new employees required details.

Clearing House employers who manually enter their contribution details will need to link their employees fund(s) in the **My Funds** section before adding them into the contribution grid. Once the fund has been linked it will then be available to select in the **Add Employee** form. If no fund is selected for your employee their contributions will be allocated to Australian Retirement Trust.

The SuperStream legislation requires the following data be provided when first enrolling or making a contribution to an employee, unless after making reasonable efforts you are unable to obtain it from the employee:

- > surname
- > given name(s)
- > date of birth
- > tax file number
- > gender
- residential address
- > telephone number

Additional member details are optional however to maintain high data standards providing as much information as possible is important. Other details that you can include are:

- > member number
- > title

i

- > payroll ID
- > start date
- > email address
- > end date (if applicable)
- > occupation information
- > salary information

Once you have entered your employee's details via the **Add Employee** form, the member will appear at the top of your grid with a green bar indicating that they're new.

If an Australian Retirement Trust member number has not been entered, one will be assigned after grid submission. Once it is available, you will see a new message next to your completed contribution on the dashboard. The member number will be populated with either the member's existing Australian Retirement Trust member number or their new member number if an account is created.

Important information:

- > Occasionally, matching to member accounts may require manual review. In these instances, the member number may not be populated for up to five business days.
- For Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House employers, the details you provide for your employee will be used to match to a member account at the destination fund. To help other funds match to an existing account, you should always provide a member number where possible.

Indicates required field	Legend S Error on mandatory field must be corrected Warning contains invalid data and should be corrected
Personal	
Member number Payroll ID	
Title	
<select> v</select>	
* Given name	
* Sumame	
* Date of birth Gender O Male O Female	
TFN	
□ The employee has elected NOT to supply their TFN to the super fun	1
Email address	
Contact details	
Phone	
Mobile telephone	
Landline telephone	
Address Address type	
Residential 😺	
Country	
status de la secono de	
AUSTRALIA	
AUSTRALIA V Address line 1	
AUSTRALIA V Address line 1	
AUSTRALIA Address line 1 Address line 2	
Address line 1	
Address line 2 Address line 3	
AUSTRALIA Address line 1 Address line 2 Address line 3 Suburb	
Address line 1 Address line 2 Address line 3 Suburb	
AUSTRALIA Address line 1 Address line 2 Address line 3 Suburb State Postcode	
AUSTRALIA Address line 1 Address line 2 Address line 3 Suburb State Postcode <select></select>	
AUSTRALIA Address line 1 Address line 2 Address line 3 Suburb State Postcode CSelect> Occupation information (optional)	

An example of the Add new employee screen

Editing an employee's details

To edit an employee's details, click on the pencil icon in your grid (under the Edit heading). In this form there are three sections:

- Personal
- > Contact details
- > Occupation information (optional)

Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House employers will see additional editable sections for members of external funds:

> Fund

i

- > Salary information (optional)
- > Other details (optional)
 - Important information:
 - If we already have a valid landline number, mobile phone number, address, email address or TFN for a Australian Retirement Trust member, this will be displayed as 'Provided' and you will not be required to re-enter the information.
 - > If any of these details require updating, please have your employee **contact us** directly.
 - You will be presented with warnings where data has not been provided for any of the mandatory SuperStream fields.

Edit emplo	oyee	Legend	
* Indicates required field		Error on mandatory field must be corrected	
Dawconal		The ring consents introducing and and another be contracted	
Personal			
Member number	Payroll ID		
Title			
<select></select>	0		
* Given name			
TEST			
* Sumame			
TEST			
* Date of birth	Gender		
01/01/1990	Male O Female		
TEN			
A You haven't supplie	the following mandatory data required by le	gislation: TFN. If your employee has given you their TFN the law requires that yo	u.
pass it on to the su	per fund, unless they have indicated otherwise	If you don't wish to supply it now, you should supply it within 10 business days	1
TFN has not been	provided so TFN Not Provided Indicator will be	set to 'TRUE'	
The employee has	elected NOT to supply their TFN to the super f	und	
And the second			

An example of the Edit employee screen.

Removing employees

i

i

Australian Retirement Trust members can be removed by adding a date to the Ceased employment date field in the contribution grid.

Clearing House employers who need to remove a choice member will need to add a date to the Super contribution cease date field under the Salary Information section in the **Edit employee** form.

If the contribution grid is not submitted or the employee is excluded, they will not be removed from your account.

If the date being entered is more than six months old for Australian Retirement Trust members please **contact us** to have the employee removed from your account, alternatively add a date that is within the past six months for Australian Retirement Trust or choice members.

Errors and warnings

Errors and warnings highlight potential issues with your employees' information or contributions. Errors are identified by a red cross and must be resolved, or the member excluded from the grid in order to proceed. Warnings are identified by a yellow exclamation, and although you can proceed with warnings, it's best to resolve these where possible. A description of the error or warning will appear on the line below the member.

Important information:

- If you are unable to resolve an error and you would like to submit your grid, you can exclude the employee from your list by checking the box in the exclude column. The member's contribution is removed from your total, however if you view your grid in future, all excluded members will be displayed. You will have to submit a separate contribution for excluded employees.
- > You will be unable to click **Next** until errors have either been resolved or the employee is excluded. You will be asked if you want to proceed if there are any warnings on the grid.
- Click on Export Validations to extract all errors and warnings for you to download and view in a spreadsheet.



An example of an error or warning screen.

Saving your contribution grid

Your contribution grid is automatically saved each time you make a change or navigate to another screen so that you can resume later. The timer next to the **Add employee**, **Print** and **Column Options** buttons display when the grid was last saved. A **Save & Close** button is also available in the top right-hand corner of the screen. When selected, this will save your contribution and return you to the dashboard.

Printing your contribution grid

You can print the contribution grid at any time by clicking on the **Print** button next to **Add employee**.

Note: this allows you to print employees that appear on your current page. At the bottom of the grid, you can change the number of employees that appear on each page by selecting from the drop down field. A maximum of 500 employees can be displayed on one page. Alternatively, you can navigate to the next page and click print again.

Step 3: Summary

The summary tab confirms:

- > the number of employees you have excluded
- > how many warnings appeared in your grid
- totals including how many employees are receiving contributions, the total of each contribution type and your overall total
- > payment details

Once you have reviewed the summary and you are ready to make your payment, click the **Submit & Complete** button.

If you're using BPAY, EFT or pay your fund directly you will receive your payment details on the **Payment Instruction** screen once you've clicked **Submit & Complete**.

If you're using Direct debit you will receive a receipt once you've clicked **Submit & Complete**.

Important information:

i

- > Don't submit your grid unless you are ready to make your payment.
- It's fine if you aren't ready yet. You can go back to the **Dashboard** and when you're ready to pay, resume the grid and submit.

• Irust	1 Start	2 Data	3 Summary	Payment	
Dashboard		2 544	J cannot y	4 Instruction	
	Check the summary belo	ow, before progressing to the o	confirmation page. To amend thi	s data, please return to the previou	s step.
Wizard	Totals				
\$	Employees with contrib	utions			2
Settings	Superannuation guarar	itee		\$	750.00
Reports	Salary sacrifice				\$0.00
	Member voluntary				\$0.00
	Total			\$	750.00
	Alerts				
	A 6 WARNIN	VGS You have chosen to	continue with 6 warnings. Non e	ssential data may be discarded.	Resolve
	Payment detai	ls			
	METHOD BPAY®				
	Please continue if you're	ready to pay your contribution	n within 24 hours.		
		,			

Note: this summary screen refers to a BPAY® Australian Retirement Trust employer. If the contributions are made by EFT or Direct Debit then the payment details will display this method.

Step 4: Receipt/Payment Instruction

Important information:

The name of this tab will vary, depending on your payment method. If you pay via direct debit, the tab is named '**Receipt**'. If you pay via BPAY, EFT or pay your fund directly the tab is named '**Payment Instruction**'.

In this tab, you can:

- > view your contribution receipt (if your payment method is direct debit)
- > view payment instructions (if your payment method is BPAY,EFT or pay your fund directly)
- > print your contribution receipt or payment instructions

You are able to view this screen at anytime via the **Dashboard** in Employer Online.

If you're using direct debit, the details of the account to be debited will be displayed on the Receipt screen.

The below table explains when your account will be debited:

Contribution submited via Employer Online	
Business day prior to 3:00pm (Brisbane Time)	Debited that night
Business day after 3:00pm or non-business day (Brisbane time)	Debited the following business day
Contribution submited via Australian Retirement Trust Cle	aring House
Contribution submited via Australian Retirement Trust Cle Business day prior to 3:30pm (Brisbane Time)	<mark>aring House</mark> Debited that night

If you're using BPAY[®] or EFT, your payment instructions will be displayed on the **Payment Instruction** screen.

Please note, contributions for your employees will only be sent to the choice fund once we've received your matching payment and you need to be mindful of your financial institution's processing timeframes.

If you're paying your fund directly your payment instructions will be displayed on the Payment Instruction screen.

Note: An employer using this option will submit their contribution data and Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House will generate a payment details file for the employer to download and provide to their financial institution to process payments to each fund. Alternatively, the employer will use the fund payment details provided and manually make payment to each super fund.

You will be given a unique transaction ID for each contribution submitted. Should you have to **contact us** in relation to your contribution, please quote this transaction ID along with your employer number.



An example of the **Receipt** screen for a Clearing House employer paying by direct debit.

Austra Retire	alian ment						
Dashboard	1 Start	2	Data	3	Summary	4	Payment Instruction
Wizard	Vour cont	bution sub ribution will not b	e processed until th	essfull ne payment	y is received.		
*	Payment	Instru	ctions		E	mployer	number
Settings	Australian	Retirement	Trust paym	ent <mark>d</mark> eta	uls		
H	-51	Biller code:	<mark>11565</mark> 9				
Reports	5	Ref:	483303004				
	PAY	Amount:	\$750.00				
	Telephone & In	ternet Banking -	BPAY®				
	Contact your bar account. More in	nk or financial ins fo: www.bpay.co	titution to make this m.au	s payment f	rom your cheque, sa	avings, deb	it or transaction
	Any payment mu paid will not be a	ust be for the exa accepted and will	ct amount of this in be returned.	voice and b	e made by the due (date. Other	rwise, any amount
	Amount			\$750.0	0		
	Transactio	n details					
	Submitted			1/02/20	022 1:11:54 PM		
	Period			March	2022		
	Transaction ID	ę.		662816	56		
	Print	Return to Dashbi	bard				

This is the **Payment Instruction** *screen for an employer paying by BPAY*[®]*. The same screen will display for EFT employers, but with the Payment Reference Number (PRN) and Australian Retirement Trust's payment details.*

 Trust 						
Dashboard	Payment Instruct	ions		Employer numbe	r	
27	Payment details					
Wizard	Payment method		Direct Credit			
<u> </u>	Total Amount		\$1,025.00			
Settings	Transaction details					
0	Submitted		1/02/2022 2:33	:34 PM		
` ''	Period		Quarter ending	30 June 2022		
My Tunas	Transaction ID		6628173			
F	Download payment deta	ils file 🤇	•		^	
Reports	* User name					
	TEST					
	* User number (APCA ID)					
	Download					
	Fund payment details					
	Fund Name	BSB	Account Number	Account Name	Payment Reference Number	Amount
	AustralianSuper	085-292	005531490	AustralianSuper Pty Ltd	391326196150000015	\$450.00
	Retail Employees Superannuation Trust	032-021	120203	Retail Employees Super Trust	391320190150000017	\$250.00
	Fund payment details Fund Name AustralianSuper Betail Employees Superapputtion Total	BSB 085-292	Account Number 005531490	Account Name AustralianSuper Pty Ltd	Payment Reference Number 391326196150000015 391326196150000017	Amour \$450
						0005.00

This is the **Payment Instruction** screen for an employer who pays to funds directly. For instance, when an employer submits contribution data through Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House and then pays directly to each fund. An employer using this option will submit their contribution data and Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House will generate a payment details file for the employer to download and provide to their financial institution to process payments to each fund. Alternatively, the employer will use the fund payment details provided and manually make payment to each super fund.

Settings

The settings tab allows you to:

- > change your password
- > change your security question
- > review your employer contact details
- > change your payment method and bank account details
- > add or remove users associated with your Employer Online account

Change password

When setting and changing your password, it must be between 8 and 35 characters and contain at least one letter and one number.

U III USI	
Dashboard	Settings
***	Adjust your account settings via the options below.
1	Change password Change security question Contact Payment Users
wizard	All fields are mandatory.
*	Verify Current password
Settings	(0)
1.77A	New password
	at least one letter and one number.
Reports	Confirm password

An example of the Change password tab screen.

Change security question

Your security question must be between 2 and 255 characters. Your security answer must be between 2 and 255 characters and cannot be the same as the question.

Dashboard	Settings Adjust your account settings via the options below.	
¥7.	Change password Change security question Contact Payment Users	
Wizard	If you forget your password, you will need to correctly answer this question before we email you a ten	iporary password.
*	Make sure your question and answer are something that only you know.	
Settings	All fields are mandatory.	
	Verify Current password	
	Security question	
Reports	Must be between 2 and 255 characters.	
	Security answer	

An example of the Change security question tab screen.

Contact

You can view your employer account details in the contact tab. If you would like any of your employer details updated, please **contact us** with the details and Australian Retirement Trust will update these for you.

A Re	stralian	
• Tri	st	
•	Settings	
Deshboard	Adjust your account settings via the options below.	
24	Change password Change security question Conject Payment Users	
Witcard	Company details	to acit this information plasma contact us.
*	Name	
Sellings	Index name	
	1. percent of the second s	
Reports	ABN	
	ACN	
	Contact's details	
	TEN	
	Given name	
	Remains	
	Phone	
	Mobile	
	Fat	
	Email	
	Street - J.J.	
	Admen	
	Restaura francis	
	Reduction	
	State	
	Palade	
	Country	
	Mailing address	
	Address	
	Butanto	
	The second s	
	Slate	
	Stabe Postcode	

An example of the Contact tab screen.

Payment

In the payments tab, you can view your current payment details, update your payment details and upgrade to Clearing House (if eligible and not already registered).

Pay by Direct Debit

If paying via Direct Debit, you can update the BSB, account number or account name you would like your Australian Retirement Trust and external contributions to be debited from, the same account will be used for refunds to be processed to.

Pay by BPAY / EFT

If BPAY[®] or EFT is your payment method; you will need to enter your bank account details, which will only be used in the event a refund is required.

Important information:

Only a 'Global' user can edit any information on Payment tab section. Note, a 'Global' user has access to all functions of Employer Online.

Austra Retire	lian
• Trust	
A	Settings
Dashboard	Adjust your account settings via the options below.
224	Change password Change security question Contact Payment Users
Wizard	How you like to manage your super contributions?
1000	
-	 I want to pay multiple funds, using Australian Retirement Trust clearing house.
Settings	How would you like to pay your amployer contributions?
	Invested lite to pay your employed contributions:
Reports	a riveduci like to make one payment to Adsirianan Rememberri ridst cleaning house to distribute an payments on my behaft.
	fund and I want to make payments to each fund myself.
	P
	Payment Details
	Payment Method *
	BPAY BPAY BOAY
	Direct Debit Direct Debit Der Control For State of the
	L Buckpacing PD/V® to complete an online contribution, you are required to submit narment via your own financial institution on the same day as submitting
	your contribution, using the BPAY details supplied in Employer Online. Your contribution obligation has not been met until this payment has been received by the superannuation fund(s).
	If you are not currently using BPAY in your business, please check with your financial institution to see if this facility is available.
	© Registered to BPAY Pty Ltd ABN 69 079 137 518
	Your payment details 🛈
	BSB *
	Account Number *
	Account Name *
	□ I have read and agree to use Australian Retirement Trust clearing house as described in the Australian Retirement Trust clearing house Product
	Disclosure Statement. I have brought to the attention of any employee(s) for which personal information will be disclosed in order to facilitate their contributions to their fund, the Privacy Statement provided within Precision Administration Services's Privacy Policy. I understand that
	Australian Retirement Trust clearing house is only available to employers who have selected Australian Retirement Trust as a default fund, and I confirm that I have nominated Australian Retirement Trust as a default fund for my employees.

Users

i

When setting up additional users on your account you can select four levels of user type access:

- **Global** gives a user access to all functions within Employer Online.
- Process only gives a user access to create, edit and save a contribution grid only. Process only users cannot submit contributions.
- **Submit only** gives a user access to submit a saved contribution and view completed contributions. Submit only users cannot edit a contribution or employee information.
- > **Upload only** gives a user access to create a contribution by file upload only. Upload only users **cannot** submit or edit contributions or employee information.

How to add a new user

To add a new user simply:

- 1. Click on the **Add User** button, which will display the add user form.
- 2. Enter the users' details.
- 3. Click the **Add** button.
- 4. Once a new user is added, their Employer Online username and password will be emailed within an hour.

Important information:

- "Location" is only visible to employers who have multiple locations attached to their employer account.
- > Only a Global user can delete other users. They are unable to delete themselves.
- To edit or verify your email or mobile number for multi-factor authentication, click on the pencil icon in the User Table, a pop-up will appear, enter your new details and click Verify.
- You can also confirm if your existing email address or phone number has been verified on this pop-up screen when you see the words VERIFIED with a tick in green above your details.

Update your email
We'll use this email to send you verification codes when you log into Employer Online.
Update your email in two easy steps
 Enter your new email Verify your email with a verification code (we'll email this to you). Email: VERIFIED ✓
Verify

- Trees	entient							
Dashboard Wizard Settings	Adjust your au Adjust your au Change pa Add or edit y We only use another meth	gs ccount settings via the op assword Change se your email or mobile your email or mobile your email or mobile the sunnile demail addre	tions below. curity question Co inded on this page for se in code.	ntact Payment nding verification codes	Users when you log into Employer Onlin punt. You can check your organisa	 Mobile is optional but tion contact details und 	recommended as er the 'Contact' tab.	
Reports	You can add	a user using the button b Iser	elow or delete users by	clicking the cross symbo	in the below.			
Reports	You can add Add a u Users	a user using the button b	elow or delete users by	clicking the cross symbo	in the below.			
Reports	You can add Add a u Users Delete User	a user using the button b user	elow or delete users by Username	clicking the cross symbo	in the below.	Mobile		

An example of the Users tab screen.

My Funds (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)

The My Funds component can only be accessed by employers that have upgraded to Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House. The My Funds functionality allow employers to:

- > link a new fund to your account
- > view and edit linked funds

How to link a new fund

1. To link a new fund, click **Link a fund**.

Note: Where an Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) fund has multiple products, you will be required to enter a Unique Superannuation Identifier (USI). If your employee has not provided you with the fund USI, you'll need to contact the external fund directly.

- 2. Once you have entered a valid USI, the fund will be returned along with the fund details. If you have a Fund Employer Number (FEN) you can enter this and then click **Add**.
- 3. When the fund has been linked, it will appear under Linked Funds and can be used straight away.

Important information:

1

- > If you're paying to a new employee and you have already linked their fund to your account, you will not be required to link the fund again. You can simply add them to the contribution grid via **Add Employee** and select their fund from the drop down list.
- > You can use the search function to locate a previously linked fund.

 Trust 								
			21					
Dashboard	My f	und	IS linked funds are listed below. To link a fund, select	t the "Link a fund" button b	elow			
***	roar pone	ang and	inter tends are noted before to first a faile, solo					
Wizard -	Link	a fund						
and the second	Link	od Fui	nde		Search for your link	ed funds		0
10	LIIK	cu rui	103		ocuren for your line			~
Settings	Fund Type	Edit	Fund	Fund Id	USI	ABN	Fund Employer No.	~
Settings	Fund Type	Edit	Fund	Fund Id C-PDWFS0112	USI WFS0112AU	ABN 81236903448	Fund Employer No.	*
Settings	Fund Type O	Edit	Fund © BT BUSINESS SUPER Cbus	Fund Id C-PDWFS0112 C-PDCBU0100	USI WFS0112AU CBU0100AU	ABN 81236903448 75493363262	Fund Employer No.	*
Settings My funds	Fund Type O	Edit	Fund © BT BUSINESS SUPER Cbus HOSTPLUS Superannuation Fund - Indu	Fund Id C-PDWFS0112 C-PDCBU0100 C-PDHOS0100	USI WFS0112AU CBU0100AU HOS0100AU	ABN 81236903448 75493363262 68657495890	Fund Employer No.	*
Settings My funds	Fund Type O O O	Edit	Fund BT BUSINESS SUPER Cbus HOSTPLUS Superannuation Fund - Indu ING Living Super	Fund Id C-PDWFS0112 C-PDCBU0100 C-PDHOS0100 C-INGDIREC001	USI WFS0112AU CBU0100AU HOS0100AU 13355603448001	ABN 81236903448 75493363262 68657495890 13355603448	Fund Employer No. 44261572	*

An example a Link a fund screen. **Note:** Details captured in this screen will vary so please try searching using either fund name, ABN or USI.

Legends definition:

Below is a list of legends that may be displayed on screen when you link a fund.

0	9	
APRA fund	SMSF	



 \mathbf{X}

How to link a Self-Managed Super Fund (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)

When you link a Self-Managed Super Fund (SMSF) you will be required to enter the super fund's ABN. You will also be required to enter the bank details, Electronic Service Address (ESA) and email address of the fund.

Once the fund details have been confirmed, the fund will be linked and will be available in your list of linked funds to use straight away.

How to edit a Fund (Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House only)

You can edit a fund by clicking on the pencil icon next to the fund you would like to edit. The following fund details can be added or edited:

APRA fund

> Fund Employer Number (FEN)

SMSF

- > Fund name
- > Electronic Service Address (ESA)
- > payment details
- > address details
- > email address
- > contact details

Reports

In this section, you can generate a Member Superannuation Report which is a per employee breakdown and will contain:

- > member name
- > member number
- > employer name
- > fund name
- submitted date
- > contribution details

How to generate a Member Superannuation Report

To obtain a Member Superannuation Report:

- Enter a date range and click **Generate report**. The report date range refers to the date the contribution was submitted, not the contribution period.
 Note: if you require a report for a specific employee, then complete the Surname, Given name or Date of birth fields.
- 2. Once your report has generated it will appear in your report history table.
- 3. You can download the report as a .pdf document or delete it if it's no longer needed.

		Australian Retiremen
		• Trust
Name	Member number	Employe
TEST, TEST		
Employer SG		
Submitted Date	Description	Amou
1/02/2022	Rest Super	\$450.0
1/02/2022	Rest Super	\$250.0
Total		\$700.0
Grand Total		\$700.0
This record of sut period(s) displayed amendments to or are not deemed to a full statement of	ponitted contributions provides a snapshot of contril I. It may not encompass changes or updates made a cancellations of the contributions, refunds or adjustr have been made until payment has been received by contributions we recommend contacting the superanr	bution data submitted for the fter submission, including an ments. Note that contribution the superannuation fund. For multion fund.
This record of sub period(s) displayed amendments to or are not deemed to a full statement of lf the employer us payments to Aus employee's chosed received and proce	omitted contributions provides a snapshot of contrib I It may not encompass changes or updates made a cancellations of the contributions, refunds or adjustr have been made until payment has been received by contributions we recommend contacting the superanr es Australian Retirement Trust clearing house they tralian Retirement Trust clearing house which the n super fund. Employers should allow 3-5 business essed by the super fund.	bution data submitted for the fter submission, including an ments. Note that contribution the superannuation fund. For mation fund. submit contribution data an men distributes these to the days for contributions to b

Example of a Member Superannuation Report – Generated from the Reports section

How to generate the Submitted Contribution Grid Report

The Submitted Contribution Grid Report displays contributions per fund and is available from the **Dashboard**. A Submitted Contribution Report can be generated by clicking on a completed contribution grid and then clicking the **Download report** button. The report will contain:

- > contribution period
- > submitted date
- > employer name
- > fund name
- > member number
- > member name
- > DOB
- > contribution details

Austra Retire Trust	ilian ment	Contribution period April 2022	Submitted c 01/02/2022	late 2	Employer		
Submitte	a Contr	ibution Grid Report					
Fund Name	: Australi	ian Retirement Trust	Date of birth	Superannuation guarantee	Salary sacrifice	Member voluntary	Totals
Fund Name Member numb Processing	: Australi per Name TEST, T	ian Retirement Trust	Date of birth 01/01/1980	Superannuation guarantee \$500.00	Salary sacrifice \$0.00	Member voluntary \$0.00	Totals \$500.00
Fund Name Member numb Processing Processing	: Australi per Name TEST, T TEST, T	EST	Date of birth 01/01/1980 01/01/1990	Superannuation guarantee \$500.00 \$250.00	Salary sacrifice \$0.00 \$0.00	Member voluntary \$0.00 \$0.00	Totals \$500.00 \$250.00
Fund Name Member numb Processing Processing Processing	Australi Der Name TEST, T TEST, T TEST, T	ian Retirement Trust EST EST EST	Date of birth 01/01/1980 01/01/1990 02/02/2001	Superannuation guarantee \$500.00 \$250.00 \$175.00	Salary sacrifice \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	Member voluntary \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	Totals \$500.00 \$250.00 \$175.00
Fund Name Member numb Processing Processing Processing	Australi Der Name TEST, T TEST, T TEST, T TEST, T	ian Retirement Trust EST EST EST EST	Date of birth 01/01/1980 01/01/1990 02/02/2001 03/03/1989	Superannuation guarantee \$500.00 \$250.00 \$175.00 \$150.00	Salary sacrifice \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	Member voluntary \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00 \$0.00	Totals \$500.00 \$250.00 \$175.00 \$150.00

Example of a Submitted Contribution Grid Report

🔀 Super Fund Onboarding (SFO)

How to use SFO?

SFO is a digital tool designed to streamline the employee onboarding process for employers. It's a time-saving tool created by Beam - part of Australian Retirement Trust group.

You can find the SFO user guide for employers **here**. And for employees, you can find the user guide **here**.

Logging off

Once you have finished your Employer Online session please ensure you **Log off**, to avoid unauthorised use.

Important information:

If you are inactive for 20 minutes your session will time out and you will be redirected to the Australian Retirement Trust website.



.

If you need help using Employer Online, please **contact us** online or call **13 11 84** between the hours of 8:00am – 7:30pm (AEST) Monday to Friday.



L 13 11 84 (+61 7 3121 0700 when overseas)

- GPO Box 2924 Brisbane QLD 4001
- art.com.au

This document is current as at July 2025. This is general information only. It's not based on your personal objectives, financial situation or needs. So, think about those things and read the relevant **Product Disclosure Statement** and **Target Market Determination** at **art.com.au/pds** before you make any decision about our products. And if you're still not sure, talk with a financial adviser. We issue this material and all Australian Retirement Trust products. When we say 'we', 'us' or 'the Trustee', we mean Australian Retirement Trust Pty Ltd (ABN 88 010 720 840, AFSL 228975), trustee of Australian Retirement Trust (ABN 60 905 115 063) ('the Fund' or 'ART'). Precision Administration Services Pty Ltd (Precision) (ABN 47 098 977 667, AFSL 246 604) issues Australian Retirement Trust (Earing House and Beam. Super Fund Onboarding (SFO) is powered by Beam. Precision is wholly owned by Australian Retirement Trust Pty Ltd (the Trustee) (ABN 88 010 720 840, AFSL 228 975), trustee of Australian Retirement Trust ('the Fund' or 'ART') (ABN 60 905 115 063). Precision issues the information in this document about Australian Retirement Trust Clearing House and Beam. The Trustee issues all information about the Fund. 257104. 06/25.